

#### R22-131

# A RESOLUTION OF THE MONO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPTING AND APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE CORRECTIONAL DEPUTY SHERIFFS' ASSOCIATION

**WHEREAS**, the Mono County Board of Supervisors has the authority under section 25300 of the Government Code to prescribe the compensation, appointment, and conditions of employment of county employees; and

**WHEREAS,** the County is required by the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (sections 3500 et seq. of the Government Code) to meet and confer with recognized employee organizations before changing the terms and conditions of employment applicable to the employee classifications represented by those organizations; and

WHEREAS, County representatives and the Mono County Correctional Deputy Sheriffs' Association (the "Association") met, conferred, and reached mutually-acceptable terms for a proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference; and

# NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF MONO RESOLVES that:

**SECTION ONE**: The proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Mono and the Association, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A – effective for the period starting with the first full pay period following MOU ratification through December 31, 2025 – is hereby ratified, adopted and approved.

**SECTION TWO:** The terms and conditions of employment set forth in the MOU are hereby prescribed for the employees whose classifications are included in the Association's bargaining unit.

**PASSED, APPROVED** and **ADOPTED** this 6<sup>th</sup> day of December 2022, by the following vote, to wit:

**AYES**: Supervisors Corless, Duggan, Gardner, Kreitz, and Peters.

NOES: None.

ABSENT: None.

	I	
1	ABSTAIN: None.	
2		Bob Gardner (Dec 15, 2022 11:49 PST)
3		Bob Gardner, Chair Mono County Board of Supervisors
4		
5	ATTEST:	APPROVED AS TO FORM:  Stacey Sirvon (Dec 15, 2022 09:53 PST)
6	Clerk of the Board	Stacey Sirvon (Dec 15, 2022 09:53 PST)  County Counsel
7	Cierk of the Board	County Counsel
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
28		
29		
30		
31		
32		

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONO

AND

MONO COUNTY CORRECTIONAL DEPUTY SHERIFFS' ASSOCIATION

January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2025

#### Contents

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS AND PURPOSES

ARTICLE 2. TERM

ARTICLE 3. RECOGNITION

ARTICLE 4. NON-DISCRIMINATON AND ASSOCIATON RIGHTS

ARTICLE 5. SALARY SCHEDULE

ARTICLE 6. SALARY

ARTICLE 7. HOLIDAY PAY

ARTICLE 8. LONGEVITY PAY

ARTICLE 9. PERS BENEFITS

ARTICLE 10. HEALTH INSURANCE AND DISABILITY BENEFITS

ARTICLE 11. DENTAL CARE PLAN

ARTICLE 12. VISION CARE PLAN

ARTICLE 13. CAFETERIA PLAN

ARTICLE 14. ASSUMING DUTIES ENTAILING CREATER RESPONSIBILITY

ARTICLE 15. HEALTH BENEFITS FOR RETIREES AND POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFICIARIES

ARTICLE 16. WORKSITE INSPECTION

ARTICLE 17. COURT APPEARANCE

ARTICLE 18. CALL-IN

ARTICLE 19. SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY

ARTICLE 20. CALCULATION OF OVERTIME

ARTICLE 21. UNIFORMS AND CLOTHING

**ARTICLE 22. EQUIPMENT** 

ARTICLE 23. VACATION LEAVE

ARTICLE 24. SICK LEAVE

ARTICLE 25. EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY

ARTICLE 26. EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

ARTICLE 27. BILINGUAL PAY

ARTICLE 28. TRAINING OFFICER PAY

ARTICLE 29.401(a) PLAN

ARTICLE 30. ASSOCIATON RELEASE TIME

ARTICLE 31. DRIVER'S PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

ARTICLE 32. MEMBERSHIP DUES

ARTICLE 33. BENEFITS OF OTHER BARGAINING UNITS

ARTICLE 34.4850 LEAVE

**ARTICLE 35. MISCELLANEOUS** 

**ARTICLE 36. SIGNATURES** 

# ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS AND PURPOSES

# A. <u>Purpose</u>

It is the purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") to promote and provide for continuity of operations and employment through harmonious relations, cooperation and understanding between management and the employees covered by this MOU; to provide an established, orderly and fair means of resolving any misunderstandings or differences which may arise from the provisions of this MOU, and to set forth the understanding reached between the parties as a result of good faith negotiations on the matters set forth herein.

# B. <u>Definitions</u>

The terms used in this MOU shall have the following definitions unless the terms are otherwise defined in specific articles hereof.

- 1. "Association" means the Mono County Correctional Deputy Sheriffs' Association.
- 2. "Base rate of pay" means the employee's current step hourly rate of pay as identified in Appendix "A".
- 3. "Compensatory time off" or "CTO" is typically time off in lieu of overtime pay. Unless otherwise provided, one and one-half (1 ½) hours of CTO is earned for each hour of overtime worked. CTO may be earned in other circumstances as described in this MOU.
- 4. "County" means the County of Mono.
- 5. "Employee" means a full-time employee covered by this MOU. Retired annuitants and part-time employees are not Employees.
- 6. "MOU" means this Memorandum of Understanding between the Association and the County.
- 7. "Regular rate of pay" means the base hourly rate of pay plus any additional amounts required by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) to be included in the regular rate, for which the employee qualifies under this MOU.
- 8. "Retiree" means a former County employee whom CalPERS considers to be a County retiree/annuitant but who is not a post-retirement health beneficiary as described below.
- 9. "Post-retirement health beneficiary" means a Retiree who, for purposes of Article 15 of this MOU:

- was hired prior to January 1, 1986, was age fifty (50) or older and held permanent employment status on their date of retirement, and accrued at least five (5) years continuous service with the County immediately preceding their date of retirement, unless they at any time prior to retirement opted to participate in the County's Section 401(a) Plan; or
- was hired after December 31, 1985 and before July 1, 1987, was age fifty (50) or older and held permanent employment status on their date of retirement, and accrued at least ten (10) years continuous service with the County immediately preceding their date of retirement unless they at any time prior to retirement opted to participate in the County's Section 401(a) Plan; or
- was hired after June 30, 1987 and before January 1, 1995, was age fifty (50) or older and held permanent employment status on their date of retirement, and accrued at least fifteen (15) years continuous service with the County immediately preceding their date of retirement unless they at any time prior to retirement opted to participate in the County's Section 401(a) Plan; or,
- was hired after December 31, 1995, and before May 1, 2001, was age fifty (50) or older and held permanent employment status on their date of retirement, and accrued at least twenty (20) years continuous service with the County immediately preceding their retirement, unless they at any time prior to retirement opted to participate in the County's Section 401(a) Plan.

# ARTICLE 2. TERM

This MOU shall be in effect from the date of ratification through 12:00 midnight on December 31, 2025.

#### ARTICLE 3. RECOGNITION

The County recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative for full-time Employees in the bargaining unit comprised of Correctional Deputy I, Correctional Deputy II, Correctional Sergeant I and Correctional Sergeant II.

#### ARTICLE 4. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

The County recognizes all legal rights of all Employees including the right to join and participate in the activities of the Association and to exercise all rights expressly and implicitly described in Section 3500 et seq. of the California Government Code, the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act ("MMBA"). The County shall not intimidate, restrain, coerce or discriminate against any Employee because of the exercise of any such rights.

There shall be no unlawful discrimination based on an Employee's race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, sexual orientation, marital status, gender identity, gender expression, genetic characteristics or information, military or veteran's status and/or any other category protected by federal and/or state law. In addition, the County shall not retaliate because of the employee's participation in an employment investigation, proceeding, hearing or legitimate employee organization activities. Employees who believe they have been harassed, discriminated against, or retaliated against, should report that conduct to the County and the County will investigate those complaints.

# ARTICLE 5. SALARY SCHEDULE

- A. The salary schedule shall consist of five (5) steps, each step shall be equivalent to five percent (5%) above the prior step. Advancement of steps shall be automatic upon the Employee's anniversary date and a satisfactory annual evaluation. No time worked while step increases were frozen, either pursuant to a previously-adopted MOU and/or imposed Terms and Conditions, shall be counted for purposes of determining any step increases provided pursuant to this MOU.
- B. Employees are required to utilize direct deposit of their payroll checks.
- C. Employees will submit their timesheets and any other data and information needed by the Finance Department for purposes of payroll processing by such deadlines as the Finance Director may set.

#### ARTICLE 6. SALARY

Effective the first full pay period following ratification of the MOU, the salary matrix attached as Appendix A will become effective. All current employees in the Correctional Deputy I classification as of the date of MOU ratification shall be at Step D of the salary matrix.

One-time NonPERSable and Essential Worker Pay – In the full pay period including January 1, 2024, each current employee shall receive a one-time non-PERSable and essential worker pay of \$1,500.00 (One Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars). In the full pay period including January 1, 2025, each current employee shall receive a one-time non-PERSable and essential worker pay of \$1,500.00 (One Thousand and Five Hundred Dollars). Employees may receive this pay either via payroll or as a contribution to the employee's section 401(a) Plan account.

#### ARTICLE 7. HOLIDAY PAY

In lieu of receiving holidays off, Employees shall receive holiday incentive pay in the amount of seven percent (7%) of their base rate of pay.

# ARTICLE 8. LONGEVITY PAY

- A. Employees who were already receiving longevity pay as of October 1, 2012, will continue to receive longevity pay but the percentage amount of such pay shall be frozen and shall not increase.
- B. Employees who were not already receiving longevity pay as of October 1, 2012, shall not be eligible to earn or receive longevity pay at any future date.

#### ARTICLE 9. PERS BENEFITS

#### A. Retirement Formula

<u>Tier 1</u>: Employees hired prior to December 27, 2012, who are Classic Members as defined by CalPERS, shall receive 3% at 50 safety retirement benefits, highest twelve (1) month average final compensation period. These Members shall pay nine percent (9%) of the CalPERS Employee's contribution on a pre-tax basis.

<u>Tier 2</u>: Employees hired on or after December 27, 2012, who are Classic Members as defined by CalPERS, shall receive 3% at 55 safety retirement benefits, highest thirty-six (36) month average final compensation period. These Members shall pay nine percent (9%) of the CalPERS Employee's contribution on a pre-tax basis.

<u>Tier 3</u>: Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, who are New Safety Members, as defined by CalPERS, shall receive 2.7% at 57 safety retirement benefits, highest thirty-six (36) month average final compensation period. These Members shall pay half of the total normal cost of the retirement plan as determined annually by CalPERS on a pre-tax basis.

Effective the first full pay period following ratification of the MOU, classic members' employee contribution shall be 12% through section 20516(f) cost sharing; and new members' employee contribution shall be 50% of normal cost or 12% through section 20516(f) cost sharing, whichever is more.

#### B. Survivor Benefit

The County shall continue to provide Employees with the PERS "Level IV" Survivor Benefit. Any expense to an Employee as a result of this benefit shall be paid by the County to PERS in the Employee's name.

#### C. Military Service Credit

The County amended its contracts with PERS to provide the option under Section 21024 (military service credit as public service) at no cost to the County.

#### ARTICLE 10. HEALTH INSURANCE AND DISABILITY BENEFITS

#### A. Health Insurance

Each Employee and his or her dependents are entitled to health care benefits as provided in this Article and Articles 11 and 12.

"Health care benefits" means the medical, dental, and eye-care benefits provided to Employees and their dependents by the County pursuant to this Agreement.

The County contracts with CalPERS medical insurance for all employees. The County shall continue to pay only the statutory amount prescribed by Government Code section 22892 per Employee per month for medical insurance, which amount shall not increase.

#### B. Disability Insurance

The County shall enroll Employees in the State Disability Insurance (SDI) program at County expense. When an Employee has filed a disability claim and is receiving disability benefits pursuant to the SDI program, the County shall continue paying:

- 1. Monthly contributions into the Cafeteria Plan based on the Employee's applicable tier (See Article 13); and
- 2. The medical portion of Social Security.

#### ARTICLE 11. DENTAL CARE PLAN

The County shall provide all Employees and their dependents with the County dental plan. The current County dental care plan shall be the minimum base coverage.

# ARTICLE 12. VISION CARE PLAN

The County shall provide all Employees and their dependents a vision care plan. The current Vision Care Plan C shall be the minimum base coverage.

#### ARTICLE 13. CAFETERIA PLAN

For Employees enrolled in PORAC medical insurance, the County will contribute into the cafeteria plan an amount equal to ninety-five percent (95%) of the PORAC premium for the coverage tier in which the Employee is enrolled (i.e., single, two-party, or family), minus the statutory amount prescribed by Government Code section 22892 paid by the County directly to PERS.

For Employees enrolled in CalPERS medical coverage other than PORAC, the County will contribute into the cafeteria plan an amount equal to eighty percent (80%) of the PERS Platinum premium for the coverage tier in which the Employee is enrolled, minus the statutory amount prescribed by Government Code section 22892, which the County shall pay directly to PERS.

#### ARTICLE 14. ASSUMING DUTIES ENTAILING GREATER RESPONSIBILITY

# A. <u>Greater Responsibility</u>

If an Employee assumes the duties of a position entailing greater responsibility than his or her regularly assigned position, that Employee shall receive a five percent (5%) increase in pay, or the same rate of pay due the "A" step out of the higher classification, whichever is higher, during the time the Employee carries out the other duties.

#### B. Provisions

The provisions of this Article are operative only when all of the following conditions occur:

- 1. Written direction has been given to the Employee to assume the other duty by the Employee's department head or by a person so authorized by the department head.
- 2. The assumption of duties entailing greater responsibility must be taken for a period of one (1) work week (or 40 hours) in order for the provisions of this Article to apply. The initial work week shall not be included in the increased pay calculations.
- 3. The position assumed has a job description in the most recent job classification and salary survey adopted by the Board of Supervisors.

# ARTICLE 15. <u>HEALTH BENEFITS FOR RETIREES AND POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFICIARIES</u>

#### A. Post-Retirement Health Beneficiaries

- 1. Post-retirement health beneficiaries and one dependent who are not yet eligible for Medicare who enroll in CalPERS medical insurance shall receive a flexible credit allowance paid through the County's cafeteria plan equal to the amount paid into the cafeteria plan for active employees for employee + 1 under Article 13. In other words, the amount of the credit allowance will vary as the County's contribution to the cafeteria plan for its active employees varies, and subject to the same limitations or qualifications (e.g., coverage tier). This amount does not include the statutory amount prescribed by Government Code section 22892 per month paid by the County directly to PERS.
- 2. Post-retirement health beneficiaries and one dependent who are eligible for Medicare who enroll in CalPERS medical insurance shall receive a flexible credit allowance paid through the County's cafeteria plan equal to the monthly amount of the PERS Choice Medicare Supplement premium or the monthly premium amount of the plan in which the post-retirement health beneficiary is enrolled, whichever is less, based on the residency and coverage single or employee + 1 tier in which the post-retirement health beneficiary is enrolled. This amount does not include the statutory amount prescribed by Government Code section 22892 per month paid by the County directly to PERS.

- 3. In the event a post-retirement health beneficiary and his or her dependent are not both Medicare-qualified, then the qualified individual shall enroll in Medicare and the flexible credit allowance paid into the cafeteria plan on their behalf shall not exceed the amount described in A.1.
- 4. Post-retirement health beneficiaries and one dependent (as defined in the dental and eye-care insurance policies) shall be provided the same dental and eye-care benefits provided to Employees in Article 10.
- 5. Any health benefits after retirement under this paragraph A will be the same as benefits for active employees. In other words, all benefits will change as the benefits of active employees change.

#### B. Retirees

Retirees hired on or after May 1, 2001, who enroll in CalPERS medical insurance shall receive the statutory amount prescribed by Government Code section 22892 per month paid directly by the County to PERS.

# ARTICLE 16. WORKSITE INSPECTION

#### A. Safe Worksites

The County shall provide reasonable safety programs and annual on-site safety inspections in order to assure safe worksites for Employees. Department heads shall schedule the safety programs and annual onsite worksite inspections. Written complaints shall be filed with the Sheriff and copies shall be transmitted by Employees who file them to the President of the Association. Should a complaint be unresolved by the Sheriff, an appeal of the matter shall be heard by the Worksite Safety Advisory Committee, which shall make its recommendation to the Board of Supervisors for a final decision.

#### B. Safety Advisory Committee

The Worksite Safety Advisory Committee shall be established as the need arises, and will consist of the County's designated risk manager, one member designated by the Association, and one member appointed by the other two members.

# ARTICLE 17. COURT APPEARANCE

Off-duty court time for the purpose of testifying to facts that occurred in the course and scope of the Employee's employment will be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the Employee's regular rate of pay with a minimum of four (4) hours. Any off-duty time required to appear in court in excess of the four (4) hours in one (1) day shall be compensated at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the Employee's regular rate of pay. This applies to hours that are non-contiguous to the Employee's regular duty hours.

If an Employee receives notice not to appear for a scheduled court appearance after the end of the Employee's last previous work shift and before leaving to attend court, then the Employee will receive one hundred dollars (\$100.00) for the court cancelation.

# ARTICLE 18. CALL-IN

- A. An employee who is called in to work outside of his or her normal work shift shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the Employee's regular rate of pay with a minimum of four (4) hours. Any time required in excess of the four (4) hours shall be compensated at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the Employee's regular rate of pay. The provisions of this Article do not apply to extended shifts.
- B. If the call-in occurs during a night or utility shift, the Employee shall receive the applicable shift differential pay.

#### ARTICLE 19: SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY

#### A. Night Shift 1830 to 0630 hours

Each Employee shall receive a pay differential of six percent (6%) of base pay in addition to his or her base hourly pay for working night shift. Any Employee who works overtime in continuation of the night shift shall continue to receive the shift differential each hour of overtime worked.

# B. <u>Utility Shift</u>

Utility shift is defined as any combination of day and night shifts scheduled in advance for a month. Utility shifts will be designated in advance by the Sheriff or his or her designee at his or her direction. Each Employee shall receive a pay differential of four percent (4%) of base pay when working a utility shift. Any Employee who works overtime in continuation of a utility shift shall continue to receive the shift differential each hour of overtime worked. If an Employee working a utility shift is moved to a night shift for a period covering two complete biweekly pay cycles, then that Employee will be redefined as working night shift and shall receive the night shift differential for those pay cycles.

#### ARTICLE 20. CALCULATION OF OVERTIME

#### A. Calculation of Overtime

It is understood that all hours worked over 80 hours in the work period will be considered and paid as overtime. Overtime shall be paid at one and one-half (1 ½) times the Employee's regular rate of pay or credited at one and one-half (1 ½) hours of compensatory time off (CTO) per excess hour. Work Time is defined as all time physically on the job (including travel time for training) as well as: sick time-off using earned sick time and/or pre-approved time-off taken as vacation and/or CTO.

#### B. Accumulation of Compensatory Time

Employees may accumulate up to two hundred (200) hours of CTO as of December 31<sup>st</sup> of each year, at which point they will be paid off for any hours in excess of 200 (i.e., Employees may accumulate more than 200 hours during the year).

# C. <u>Travel Time</u>

Generally, travel time to and from work does not constitute hours worked. This is true whether the Employee works at a fixed or at different job sites. However, time spent in travel during the workday must be counted as hours worked when it is related to the Employee's job. Further, travel time that occurs in addition to regular working hours is considered hours worked if it is performed pursuant to the County's instructions. The rate of pay for such additional travel time shall be five dollars (\$5.00) per hour. It is the intent of this paragraph that this rate of pay apply only to travel time for travel related to seminars and/or education.

- (1) One-Day Travel Out of Town: All travel time of an Employee sent out of town by the County on a special one-day assignment shall be counted as hours worked, except any time spent traveling by the Employee between his or her home and the terminal or a common carrier when such carrier is used to transport the Employee. Also excluded from hours worked shall be the Employee's usual meal time.
- (2) Overnight Travel Out of Town: If an Employee's duties require him or her to travel out of town overnight, travel time during his or her normal working hours (on both normal working days and days that are normal days off) is counted as hours worked, except that the Employee's usual meal time is not counted as hours worked.
- (3) <u>Use of Private Automobile on Travel Out of Town</u>: If an Employee is offered public transportation, but requests permission to drive his or her own care instead, the County may count as hours worked either the time spent driving the car or the time it would have had to count as hours worked during working hours if the employee had used public transportation.
- (4) <u>Work Performed While Traveling</u>: If an Employee performs required work while traveling, the time involved must be counted as hours worked, except during the Employee's usual meal periods.

#### ARTICLE 21. UNIFORMS AND CLOTHING

#### A. Uniforms for New Employees

Upon hire, each new Employee will be reimbursed up to five hundred dollars (\$500.00) for the purchase of uniforms and equipment upon presentation of receipts. Alternatively, each new Employee may request, and the County shall provide, a store credit of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or the balance thereof for the purchase of uniforms and equipment from a vendor(s) selected by the County. Should a new Employee not complete twelve (12) months of service as a public

safety officer, the County may recover \$40.00 per month from that Employee for each month of service not completed up to the 12<sup>th</sup> month, which shall be deducted from the Employee's final paycheck.

#### B. Uniform Maintenance Allowance

Commencing on the July 1 that is at least six (6) months following the Employee's date of hire, Employees will be reimbursed up to six hundred dollars (\$600.00) per fiscal year, for the purchase and/or maintenance of uniforms and equipment upon presentation of receipts. Alternatively, commencing that same date, each Employee may request, and the County shall provide, an annual store credit of six hundred dollars (\$600.00) or the balance thereof for the purchase and maintenance of uniforms and equipment from a vendor(s) selected by the County. Employees shall be responsible for the replacement and maintenance of their uniforms. Any uniform damaged within the course and scope of employment shall be replaced or repaired at no cost to the Employee. The determination whether a uniform should be repaired or replaced shall be made by the Sheriff or Undersheriff.

# C. Property of County

All insignia and equipment issued to Employees shall be returned to the Mono County Sheriff's Department in good condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, prior to receipt of the Employee's final paycheck. Any change or addition to the existing uniform which is ordered by the Sheriff's Department shall be at the County's expense.

#### ARTICLE 22. EQUIPMENT

The County shall provide Employees with the following equipment, and thereafter replace or repair such equipment when deemed necessary by the Sheriff's Office:

Cold Weather Jacket

Handcuffs and Handcuffs Case

Flashlight and Holder, Batteries, and Bulb

Ammunition & Gun Cleaning Supplies

Protective Ear & Eye Wear for Range

Pepper Spray and Holder (after training)

Sam Browne Duty Belt

Duty Weapon, Holster, and Magazines (after training)

ASP Baton & Holder (after training)

Taser & Holster (after training)

Ballistic Vest (up to 4 will be purchased per year, to be assigned at the discretion of the Sheriff to four Employees who have successfully completed probation)

Snowsuit for Snowmobile duty (up to 4 will be purchased per year, to be assigned at the discretion of the Sheriff to four employees who have successfully completed probation)

Boots (every three years up to \$350 shall be reimbursed upon presentation of receipts)

#### ARTICLE 23. VACATION LEAVE

# A. Vacation Accrual

Employees shall accrue vacation leave as follows:

Initial Employment 80 vacation hours per year

After 3 years of service 120 vacation hours per year

After 10 years of service 136 vacation hours per year

After 15 years of service 152 vacation hours per year

After 20 years of service 160 vacation hours per year

#### B. Maximum Accrual

The maximum number of vacation hours that may be accumulated by any Employee as of December 31<sup>st</sup> of any year is 300 hours ("Accrual Cap"). If an Employee's vacation hours exceed the Accrual Cap on December 31s of any year, then the vacation accrual will cease until his or her vacation hours are at or below the Accrual Cap.

#### C. Compensation

Any Employee who has accumulated 80 vacation hours may, upon written request, be compensated at the Employee's base pay rate for up to 40 hours of accrued vacation hours per calendar year, instead of taking that vacation time off. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an Employee has made every reasonable effort to use his or her vacation time throughout the year so as to avoid reaching the Accrual Cap but is not able to do so due to unexpected personnel needs or safety-related requirements of the Department, then the Employee may request to be compensated by the County for that additional number of hours needed to bring his or her vacation accrual back down to the Accrual

Cap as of December 31<sup>st</sup>. Such request shall be approved or disapproved in the sole discretion of the Sheriff based on the criteria set forth in this Article.

# ARTICLE 24. SICK LEAVE

- A. Employees shall accrue 8 hours of sick leave per month of full-time service. Upon retirement, employees may convert unused sick time to service credit with CalPERS. Sick leave shall have no cash value.
- B. Employees may elect to use accrued leaves after sick leave or workers' compensation is exhausted.

# C. Compensation for Accrued Sick Leave

Employees may be compensated for a maximum of 960 hours upon separation from Mono County as follows:

- 1. If the Employees has worked for the County for less than five (5) years, no compensation shall be paid for accrued sick leave.
- 2. If the Employee has worked for the County more than five (5) years, but less than ten (10) years, then the Employee shall be paid seventy-five percent (75%) of the dollar value of the accrued sick leave.
- 3. If the Employee has worked for the County more than ten (10) years, then the Employee shall be paid one hundred percent (100%) of the dollar value of the accrued sick leave.
- 4. If the Employee is terminated by reason of layoff, then the Employee shall be paid one hundred percent (100%) of the dollar value of the accrued sick leave.
- 5. The dollar value of the Employee's accrued sick leave shall be based upon the Employee's Base Rate of Pay on the date of separation.

# ARTICLE 25. EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE AND CERTIFICATE PAY

- A. Employees shall receive two and one-half percent (2.5%) of their base rate of pay for possession of an Associate's degree.
- B. Employees shall receive five percent (5%) of their base rate of pay for possession of a Bachelor's degree.
- C. Educational incentive pay shall not be additive nor compounded. In other words, the total amount of Educational pay which an Employee may receive is five percent (5.0%) of their base rate of pay.

- D. In addition to the Education pay listed above, eligible Employees shall receive Certificate Pay, as listed below. The total amount of Certificate Pay which an Employee may receive is ten percent (10%) of their base rate of pay. The total Certificate and Education pay an Employee can receive is fifteen percent (15%).
- E. Employees possessing an Intermediate Dispatch POST Certificate shall receive five percent (5.0%) of their base rate of pay.
- F. Employees possessing an Advanced Dispatch POST Certificate shall receive five percent (5.0%) of their base rate of pay.

# ARTICLE 26. EDUCATONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

- A. Employees who enroll in job-related or promotion-oriented courses shall be reimbursed by the County for allowable expenses related to the courses in an amount not to exceed seven hundred dollars (\$700.00) per calendar year. Allowable expenses shall include tuition costs and out-of-pocket expense for required course material and textbooks, and shall be subject to the following:
  - Courses must be taken from an accredited institution.
  - 2. Employees will not be granted time off from their regular work schedule to attend such courses, unless approved by the Sheriff.
  - 3. Approval for education assistance program shall be at the written discretion of the Sheriff. Such approval shall be obtained by the Employee prior to enrollment. A copy of the written approval shall be filed with the Auditor's office.
  - 4. Required course material and textbooks may be retained by the Employee upon satisfactory completion of the course.
- B. Reimbursement shall be made to the Employee within fifteen (15) calendar days after presentation to the Auditor's office of appropriate receipts and proof of completion of the course with a minimum grade of "C" or its equivalent.

#### ARTICLE 27. BILINGUAL PAY

Employees who are bilingual in Spanish or other languages useful to their work, as determined by the Sheriff, shall receive five percent (5%) of their base rate of pay.

# ARTICLE 28. TRAINING OFFICER PAY

The County will continue to provide a five percent (5%) increase to the base rate of pay of an Employee who is acting as a Training Officer, which shall last for the period during which such training actually occurs.

#### ARTICLE 29.401(a) PLAN

# A. Eligibility

Employees hired on or after May 1, 2001, are not eligible to earn or receive the post-retirement health benefits provided by paragraph A of Article 15, but shall instead be eligible to receive County contributions into an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) Plan established by the County, as described below. Any active Employee who was hired prior to M ay 1, 2001, may also elect to receive County contributions into a Section 401(a) Plan under this Article, but only if he or she waives and relinquishes any present or future rights he or she may have to receive the retiree health benefits provided by Section A of Article 15.

# B. County Contribution

The County has established and implemented an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) Plan consistent with this Article. The County shall contribute into the Section 401(a) Plan on behalf of each Employee electing to participate under this Article an amount equal to the amount contributed by that Employee from his or her own pre-tax salary into one of the County's Section 457 deferred compensation plans or into the 401(a) Plan directly (if made available to Employee contributions) but not to exceed three percent (3%) of the Employee's pre-tax salary. Accordingly, if an Employee contributed a total of one to three percent (1-3%) of his or her pre-tax salary to a 457 plan, then the dollar amount of the County's 401(a) contribution would fully match the Employer's 457 contribution; if an Employee contributed more than three percent (3%) of his or her pre-tax salary to a 457 plan, then the dollar amount of the County's 401(a) contribution would only be equal to three percent (3%) (and not more) of the Employee's pre-tax salary, and would not fully match the Employee's 457 contribution. The Employee may direct the investment of said contributions in accordance with the options or limitations provided by the 401(a) Plan. Each such Employee shall vest - that is, earn the right to withdraw the County's contributions into the 401(a) Plan on their behalf based on years of County service, as set forth more fully below.

#### C. Schedule

	Portion of Account
Years in County Service	Value Vested
Less than 1 year	0 percent
1 year plus 1 day to 2 years	10 percent
2 years plus 1 day to 3 years	20 percent
3 years plus 1 day to 4 years	40 percent
4 years plus 1 day to 5 years	60 percent
5 years plus 1 day but less than 6 years	80 percent
7 years	100 percent

#### D. Legal Requirements

In addition to and notwithstanding the foregoing, Employees' options for withdrawing, "rolling over," and otherwise using account money – and the tax consequences of such

withdrawals and use – shall be subject to any legal requirements or limitations of Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and any other applicable laws.

# ARTICLE 30. ASSOCIATION RELEASE TIME

# A. Time Off with Pay for Association Matters

The Association President and designated representatives shall have reasonable time off with pay for the purpose of carrying out Association-related matters (not to exceed a total of three (3) persons). The Association representatives shall notify the Sheriff that they will be participating in Association matters.

# B. Attend Meetings Without Loss of Pay

The County agrees that covered employees may attend semi-annual Association membership meetings during working hours without loss of pay provided:

- 1. Attendance is verified by signature roster prepared and certified by the Association Secretary.
- 2. Attendance during working hours without loss of pay will be limited to two (2) hours per meeting.
- 3. The Employee's absence from work will not result in the lack of minimum coverage of office functions in the Employee's office as determined by the Employee's department head.

# ARTICLE 31. DRIVER'S PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

When a physical examination is required for the acquisition or renewal or a driver's license and is required in the performance of an Employee's duties, the examination shall be provided by a medical doctor designated by the County at the County's expense. The examination shall be performed during the Employee's regular working hours without any deduction in pay.

#### ARTICLE 32. MEMBERSHIP DUES

#### A. <u>Association Membership Dues</u>

- 1. Upon notification to the County that an Employee has elected to participate in the Association, the County will deduct Association dues from the Employee's paycheck as directed by the Association and transmit such dues to the Association monthly.
- 2. The amount of membership dues shall be set by the Association. In the event of a change in the amount of dues, the Association shall promptly notify the County in writing of the new amount and the County will implement the new dues as soon as reasonably practicable.

3. Under no circumstances is membership in the Association a condition of County employment.

#### B. Hold Harmless

The Association shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the from all claims against the County, and all lawsuits in which the County is a party defendant arising out of or as a result of the provisions of this Article, except for claims against the County which arise from the County's intentional, wanton or reckless acts (or malice, fraud or oppression).

#### C. Financial Report

The Association shall keep an adequate, itemized record of its financial transactions and shall make available annually, to Association Employees within sixty (60) days after the end of the fiscal year, a detailed written financial report thereof in the form of a balance sheet and an operation statement, certified as to accuracy by its President and Treasurer or corresponding principal officer, or by a certified public accountant.

# D. Representation of All Employees

The Association shall fairly and equally represent each Employee.

# ARTICLE 33. BENEFITS OF OTHER BARGAINING UNITS

In negotiating with the Association for a successor to the MOU, the County shall make available to the Association pertinent non-confidential information and shall consider in good faith such negotiations, the extent of past or future wage, pay and benefit increases provided to employees in other bargaining units. The County shall treat Employees fairly and equitably in comparison to employees represented by other bargaining units including the provisions of Government Code Sections 3247 et seq.

#### ARTICLE 34, 4850 LEAVE

Each Correctional Deputy and Correctional Sergeant shall be provided with Labor Code Section 4850 benefits pursuant to the terms of that statute.

#### ARTICLE 35. MISCELLANEOUS

#### A. Understanding of the Parties

This Memorandum of Understanding contains all the covenants, stipulations and provisions agreed by the parties. It is understood that all items relating to employees' wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment not covered by the Memorandum of Understanding shall remain the same for the term of this Memorandum of Understanding. Therefore, except by mutual agreement of the parties or as specifically provided otherwise herein, for the life of the Memorandum of Understanding, neither party shall be compelled to bargain with the other concerning any mandatory bargaining issue whether or not the issue was specifically bargained for prior to the execution of the

Memorandum of Understanding. There shall be no changes to the Personnel Rules which affect negotiable wages, hours, terms or conditions of employment without mutual agreement. This Memorandum of Understanding shall remain in full force and effect until a new Memorandum of Understanding is ratified or the County imposes its last, best and final proposal.

#### B. Work Schedule

An alternate 12-hour work schedule is adopted for all Correctional Deputies primarily consisting of six 12-hour shifts and one 8-hour shift per fourteen (14) day work period. Supervisory Employees (Jail Sergeant) will adopt an alternate 10-hour schedule consisting of eight 10-hour shifts during the fourteen (14) day work period. The work period is defined as Sunday through the second Saturday following and will be the same fourteen-day work period for all Employees. It is understood that exceptions to this schedule may/will occur to accommodate training and/or emergencies and all efforts will be made to ensure at least eighty (80) total work hours in the work period for all Employees.

The Sheriff, acting in good faith, reserves the right to alter or change the schedule as he or she deems necessary. In the case of public emergency, this change may be made without notice. For all other reasons, other than emergency, at least one (1) month notice will be given.

# C. Personnel Rules

The Mono County personnel rules adopted by Resolution R12-67 on September 18, 2012, and as subsequently amended, are not affected or amended by this MOU and remain in full force and effect. In the event of a conflict between those personnel rules and any provision of this MOU, the provision of this MOU shall control. Notwithstanding any other provision of this MOU, the parties agree that the County may, during the term of this MOU, propose revisions to the personnel rules and/or additional personnel rules, provided that County allows an appropriate opportunity for affected Employees and their bargaining units to "meet-and-confer" in compliance with the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act. Association agrees that once the County has duly adopted any such new and/or personnel rules, they shall apply to all Employees covered by this MOU.

#### D. <u>Amendments</u>

The MOU may be amended only in writing by mutual agreement after good faith negotiations between the parties. Any purported oral amendment shall be void and of no legal force or effect whatsoever.

III

# ARTICLE 36. SIGNATURES

In witness thereof, the parties hereto, acting by and through their duly authorized representatives have executed this Memorandum of Understanding.

Bob Gardner
Bob Gardner (Dec 15, 2022 11:49 PST)

BOB GARDNER, CHAIR Mono County Board of Supervisors MATTHEW GUNTERT, PRESIDENT Mono County Correctional Deputy Sheriffs' Association

DocuSigned by:

EMILY MALM

Mono County Correctional Deputy Sheriffs' Association

Approved as to Form:

Stacey Sin on (Dec 15, 2022 09:53 PST)

STACEY SIMON County Counsel

# MONO COUNTY SALARY SCHEDULE

# Correctional Deputy Sheriffs' Association (CDSA)

Effective January 1, 2023, or first full payroll following ratification of MOU

		STEPS				
POSITION TITLE	GRADE	A	В	С	D	Е
Correctional Deputy I	47					
Annual					\$55,680.00	\$58,476.00
Bi-weekly		Not Applicable			\$2,141.54	\$2,249.08
Hourly					\$26.7692	\$28.1135
Correctional Deputy II	orrectional Deputy II					
Annual	49	\$61,400.00	\$64,470.00	\$67,694.00	\$71,078.00	\$74,632.00
Bi-weekly	ly 49		\$2,479.62	\$2,603.60	\$2,733.78	\$2,870.47
Hourly		\$29.5192	\$30.9952	\$32.5450	\$34.1723	\$35.8809
Correctional Sergeant I	58					
Annual		\$78,364.00	\$82,282.00	\$86,396.00	\$90,716.00	\$95,252.00
Bi-weekly	36	\$3,013.99	\$3,164.69	\$3,322.92	\$3,489.06	\$3,663.52
Hourly		\$37.6749	\$39.5586	\$41.5365	\$43.6133	\$45.7940
Correctional Sergeant II						
Annual	59	\$82,282.00	\$86,396.00	\$90,716.00	\$95,252.00	\$100,014.00
Bi-weekly		\$3,164.69	\$3,322.92	\$3,489.06	\$3,663.52	\$3,846.70
Hourly		\$39.5586	\$41.5365	\$43.6133	\$45.7940	\$48.0837